O
%

Leicester
City Council

MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY
COMMISSION

DATE: WEDNESDAY, 25 MAY 2016

TIME: 6:30 pm (Please note later start time)

PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles
Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

Members of the Commission

Members appointed at the Annual Council on 19 May 2016.

Members of the Commission are invited to attend the above meeting to
consider the items of business listed overleaf.

%—S_C’_aﬂ

For Monitoring Officer

Officer contacts:
Graham Carey (Democratic Support Officer):
Tel: 0116 454 6356, e-mail: Graham.Carey@leicester.gov.uk
Kalvaran Sandhu (Scrutiny Policy Officer):
Tel: 0116 454 6344, e-mail: Kalvaran.Sandhul@]leicester.gov.uk)
Leicester City Council, City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ




Information for members of the public

Attending meetings and access to information

You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings & Scrutiny
Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes. On occasion however, meetings may, for
reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private.

Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’'s website at
www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, from the Council’s Customer Service Centre or by contacting us using the
details below.

Making meetings accessible to all

Wheelchair access — Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users.
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate on
the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically.

Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability).

Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms. Please speak to the
Democratic Support Officer using the details below.

Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including social
media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council’'s policy, persons and press
attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where
the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting.
Details of the Council’s policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support.

If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant
Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in
advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public
gallery etc.

The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and engagement
so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked:

to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption;

to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided;

where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting;

where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they may
be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed.

DN NN

Further information

If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact Graham
Carey, Democratic Support on (0116) 454 6356 or email graham.carey@leicester.gov.uk or call in
at City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ.

For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 454 4151


http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/
mailto:graham.carey@leicester.gov.uk

PUBLIC SESSION

AGENDA

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION

If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel
on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will
then be given.

1.

2,

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business on
the agenda.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMISSION

To note the membership of the Commission for the municipal year 2016/17.
This will be submitted for approval to the Annual Council meeting to be held on
19 May 2016 and it will be made available as soon as practicable after the
Annual Council Meeting.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

To note the Terms of Reference of the Commission to be approved by the
Annual Council at its meeting on 19 May 2016. These will be circulated as
soon as practicably after the Annual Council Meeting.

DATES OF COMMISSION MEETINGS

To note the dates for meetings of the Commission for the municipal year
2016/17. These will be submitted for approval to the Annual Council meeting
to be held on 19 May 2016 and they will be made available as soon as
practicable after the Annual Council Meeting.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING Appendix A
(Page 1)

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2016 have been circulated and the
Commission will be asked to confirm them as a correct record.

The minutes can be found on the Council’'s website at the following link:-

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk:8071/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=737&MId=7015&Ver=4



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

PETITIONS

The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any petitions submitted in
accordance with the Council’s procedures.

QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, STATEMENTS OF
CASE

The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any questions,
representations and statements of case submitted in accordance with the
Council’s procedures.

HEALTH PROFILE OF LEICESTER Appendix B
(Page 17)

To receive a presentation from the Director of Public Health providing an
overview of ‘A Picture of Health in Leicester City.” The presentation is
attached.

BETTER CARE TOGETHER Appendix C
(Page 29)

To receive a presentation from the Programme Director, Better Care Together
providing an overview and update of the Better Care Together Programme.

CHILD AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH Appendix D
SERVICES (CAMHS) (Page 36)

To receive a service brief and position statement on CAMHS from the
Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust (LPT).

ANCHOR RECOVERY HUB
To receive an update on the Anchor Recovery Hub.

WORK PROGRAMME Appendix E
(Page 45)

The Scrutiny Policy Officer submits a document that outlines the Health and
Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission’s Work Programme for 2014/15. The
Commission is asked to consider the Programme and make comments and/or
amendments as it considers necessary.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS



A Appendix A

Coo

o

Leicester
City Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the
HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMISSION

Held: THURSDAY, 21 APRIL 2016 at 5:30 pm

PRESENT:

Councillor Chaplin (Chair)

Councillor Alfonso Councillor Dr Chowdhury
Councillor Bhavsar Councillor Singh Johal

Also In Attendance:

Councillor Osman Assistant City Mayor Public Health
Richard Morris Director of Corporate Affairs Leicester City Clinical
Commissioning Group

**k*x ** **x%x

79. APOLOGIES FRO ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fonseca, Palmer and
Sangster and Mr Surinder Sharma, Healthwatch.

80. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests they might have in the business
on the agenda. No such declarations were made.

81. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

AGREED:

that the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2016 be
approved as a correct record.

82. PETITIONS

The Monitoring Officer reported that no petitions had been submitted in



83.

accordance with the Council’s procedures.

QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, STATEMENTS OF CASE

The Monitoring Officer reported that no questions, representations and
statements of case had been submitted in accordance with the Council’'s
procedures.

The Chair indicated that she had received the following questions submitted at
late notice and would take them at her discretion at the meeting:-

CARE AND PLACEMENT OF ASPERGER PATIENTS ON BEAUMONT
WARD, BRADGATE UNIT

The Chair invited Mr Bradly who had asked a question at the last meeting to
give an update

Mr Bradly stated that the process was still on going and now enveloped in
determining the appropriate legal status for his son’s continued care. He had
met with officers and had been put in touch with a number of groups. He had
not yet received a copy of his son’s assessment and care plan.

The Strategic Director of Adult Social Care stated he had met with Mr Bradly
and to discuss the Transforming Care agenda and the Autism Strategy
Guidance. Mr Bradly had also met with the lead Commissioner for Mental
Health/Learning Services to feed his concerns into the commissioning process
and it was hoped that Mr Bradly would also take part in various groups
involved. The Director also stated that discussions had taken place with NHS
colleagues involved in this case and discussions were ongoing to address to try
and reach a consensus as to who should take responsibility for oversight of
individual cases where there were a number of health care partners providing
different elements of funding. Discussions were taking place with practitioners
groups to clarify a process in these instances. It was recognised that there
were some issues of miscommunication and a number of other minor factors
which had contributed to an overall ongoing frustration with Mr Bradly’s
experience of the health care system.

The Chair was pleased that the issues had been considered by those involved
in the treatment of patients with Asperger’s and that Mr Bradly has shone a
light on an area where change was required.

QUEENS ROAD MEDICAL CENTRE

The Chair asked whether Mr Shelley, who had asked questions at the last
meeting, had been provided with contact details of those leading the discussion
on federations. Richard Morris, Leicester City CCG, stated that a meeting had
been arranged for 5 May 2016 for Mr Shelley to discuss the patients concerns
with the 3 clinical leads. The Chair indicated that she would also be attending.



The Chair indicated that she had also received the following questions
submitted at late notice and would take them at the meeting.

ANCHOR CENTRE
Mr Wayne Henderson asked the following questions:-

The final statement made by the chair at the meeting on 28th September 2015
stated “Members expressed support for the work of the Centre and felt that the
situation should not have been allowed to reach its current state and, whilst
they acknowledged the work currently being undertaken to find an alternative
location for the Centre, they were dismayed that the current unsatisfactory
situation had not been resolved”

1. It is now April 2016, and despite a joint successful bid which secured
£267k in February for capital funding for the Anchor Centre/Recovery
Hub - we are still no closer to securing or understanding where it will be
acceptable to relocate to.

2. Can the council comment on the planning application for the current
Anchor centre site on Dover Street? Has the land already been identified
for sale or is it still available for the Recovery Hub?

The Assistant City Mayor, Public Health, stated that work was currently being
undertaken to find suitable premises to meet the needs of the service. No
formal decision had yet been made and the need to use the £267k within 12
months was fully understood.

The Assistant City Mayor also stated that he understood the planning
application had been submitted by a member of the public and not the Council.
He would look into the issue and report back to a future meeting.

It was noted that Anchor Centre was a standing item on the Commission’s
Work Programme and further updates would be received at future meetings.

PRIMARY CARE SUMMIT

Katy Wheatley had asked for the following questions to be submitted but was
unable to attend through illness:-

1. ‘What is the status of the Primary Care Summit which was supposed to
be scheduled to happen in April, given that April is now nearly over? Has
a date been set yet?'

2. 'Patient groups like PPGs and community groups such as Save My GP,
which sprang from the Save Queen’s Road Medical Centre, are keen to
be involved and members of the Save My GP group met with Rory
Palmer and were assured that their group and others would be involved
in some way. Could you elaborate on this please, and when they can
expect to hear with regard to the summit?’



84.

The Assistant City Mayor Public Health stated that the Deputy City Mayor had
indicated that he would provide a written answer to Ms Wheatley.

SUBSTANCE MISUSE SERVICE

Mr Mark Gawthorpe expressed concerns that given the level of need in the city,
and cost effective evidence for investment, as opposed to increases in long
term costs to the city as a consequence of budget cuts (savings), he asked
what was the justification for making the reduction in the budget for the
service?

The Assistant City Mayor Public Health stated that there had been an
unprecedented reduction in the public health grant from the government in
recent times. However, the proposed savings to the Substance Misuse Service
procurement were mainly through achieving reduced management and back
office costs by having a combined Leicester Leicestershire and Rutland
contract.

PUBLIC HEALTH PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Director of Health submitted a report that provided an overview of
performance management in relation to public health in Leicester. The report
focused on the delivery of local and national priorities. It was noted that 11
Public Health Measures indicators, 2 had worsened, 1 showed no changed and
8 were improving.

The Director of Public Heath referred to 2 indicators for childhood obesity and
smoking cessation that had worsened. It was noted that childhood obesity was
measured and the start and end of primary school and there were early signs
of improvement of obesity levels in reception classes which may produce an
improvement in obesity in year six in years to come. Work was continuing with
nursery and primary schools to reduce childhood obesity.

In relation to smoking cessation, there had been fall in the number of users of
the service both in the City and nationally. The increased use of e-cigarettes
was having an impact on the number of people using services to help them to
stop smoking. The Council was also involved in a national study to assess
effectiveness of e-cigarettes to support people to stop smoking. This reflects
national evidence from Public Health England that e-cigarettes are significantly
less harmful to health than cigarettes.

There are still major health challenges in the City, with impacts on the need for
a range of services including social care. People in the City have long term
poorer health at an earlier age than compared to the national average,
particularly men. This is due to high rates of conditions such as heart disease,
diabetes and respiratory conditions.



Following Members questions and comments, the Director of Public Health
stated that:-

a)

b)

d)

Previous working conditions and practices of people working in
foundries, mines or car mechanics could be a contributory factor in
them developing poorer health in later life.

The sugar tax is aimed to free up resource for schools to develop
programmes to increase physical activity and reduce levels of obesity.

It is not always easy to measure the impact of local interventions
compared to wider societal changes in changing habits in relation to
health. However, the performance of public health indicators can be
compared to other similar areas, giving an indication of how effective
local work has been. In some cases, including teenage pregnancy, the
City has improved at a faster rate than other places, suggesting that
local actions, such as improving access to contraception and RSE in
schools has contributed to the substantial reduction over a long period of
time.

Cancer screening programmes are delivered by GPs and other parts of
the NHS, supported by national campaigns run by NHS England. These
are important in terms of improving life expectancy and early detection
of disease. Good quality primary care was important to improving
people’s general health and GPs and practice nurses played an
important part in giving good advice and information to patients,
identifying preventable disease early and starting patients on the correct
treatment.

Health messaging was important to bring about changes in people’s
attitude towards taking responsibility for improving their own health and
for addressing known health issues affecting the City and should be
incorporated into the work of the Scrutiny Review on Health Messaging.

AGREED:

That the report be noted and that a further update report be submitted in
6 months or at such a time as the indicators are updated.

ACTION:

The Scrutiny Policy Officer add the item to the future Work Programme.

85. PUBLIC HEALTH BUDGET REPORT

The Director of Public Health submitted a report which briefed the Commission
on budget savings proposed for 2016/17.




It was noted that:-

a) The reductions in the public health budget were a result of the
government’s decision to reduce the public health ring fenced grant for
local authorities which was announced in the November 2015 spending
review.

b) The public health budget was being reduced year on year nationally by
2.2% in 2016/17, 2.5% in 2017/18, 2.6% in 2018/19 and a further 2.6%
in 2019/20. These reductions were in addition to the in-year
subsequently announced in 2015/16.

C) The savings required were:-

Savings In-year

2015/16 £1.6m
2016/17 £621k
2017/18 £695k

The spending review also announced that the ring-fenced elements of
the public health grant would cease from 2018/19 onwards.

d) The scope for in-year savings was limited as 75%-80% of the public
health budgets for 2015-2017 were already commissioned through
contracts and the first break point in some of these contracts occurred in
2017/18.

e) The proposed savings had also been selected after considering the
significant health issues affecting the city and evidence of the
effectiveness and performance of the areas suggested for savings.

Following Members’ questions on the suggested proposals for budget
reductions the Assistant City Mayor Public Health and the Director of Public
Heath commented that:-

a) Cease Support for weight management in pregnancy service

The service which was originally jointy funded by the CCG and Public Health
was reviewed in 2015/16 and found that the service was used by a very small
number of women and the completion rates were low. Support and advice was
provided by community midwives as a routine part of their care and through
‘Bumps to Babies’; a universal antenatal service provided through children’s
centres.

b) Drugs and Alcohol

Savings of £1.4m could be achieved in 2016/17 following the retendering of a
combined drugs and alcohol service across Leicester Leicestershire and
Rutland. The savings would be achieved through economies of scale, reduced
management and back office costs. The purpose of the combined contact was
intended to deliver services at a lower cost without affecting the impact of the




front line service.

C) Alcohol Brief Interventions Advice

Savings could now be achieved as the NHS Heathcheck initiative was now well
established and GPs were covering the advice through the routine screening of
patients in the programme.

d) Staffing Review
Savings identified for the staffing review would be developed and would be the
subject of separate EIA and consultation.

The Chair referred to savings in services affecting smoking cessation and
healthchecks and asked whether such services could easily be re-introduced in
the future if performance reduced or future research indicated that e-cigarettes
were not preferable to stop smoking services.

The Director of Public Health commented that with the removal of ring-fenced
budgets more and more future decisions on health initiatives would need to be
taken in the context of overall budgetary pressure facing the Council. Work
was being undertaken to ensure that as much intervention and treatment for
public health was incorporated into core NHS services and that services were
focused in areas of the City with poor health. Both Public Health and NHS
services faced the challenge of ensuring maximum benefits were received from
reducing budgets. When service budgets were reduced it would be essential
to monitor the impact of services to see if there were any negative impacts on
health or reduced performance.

The Assistant City Mayor Public Health commented that public health was
facing unprecedented reductions in funding and that he was working closely
with other parts of the council to ensure that the maximum benefits to health
were achieved from all services. Savings were being sought from removing
duplication wherever possible and achieving best value whilst prioritising and
protecting front line services whenever possible. It should also be recognised
that a number of contracts which had transferred to the Council were still in
their transition phase.

Members also made the following comments:-

a) It was important for children to understand and be taught how to cook
healthy food as this could have significant benefits in the future. It was
recognised that this had been raised before and it was hoped that this
could be captured within the work on health messaging.

b) Where savings were being identified for services arising from duplication
with other providers or where they were being provided by GPs or
elsewhere in the health economy: then this should be clearly stated.

C) There were concerns about the impact of some of the proposed
reductions on LGBT communities and women especially in relation to
sexual health checks.



86.

d) The EIA when fully completed in the future should be shared with the
Commission.

e) The important role of the Assistant City Mayor and the City Mayor in
making future decisions on health priorities when ring-fenced budgets
were removed should be fully recognised and it was important to
understand the value of individual services when making such decisions.

In response to the comments made by Members, the Director of Public Health
commented that there were no proposals to reduce sexual health and
contraceptive services this year. Screening programmes such as cervical
cancer screening were funded separately by NHS England. Health visitors and
school nurses also promoted healthy eating and reinforced health messaging
on obesity etc and 0-19 Children’s Services would be central to achieving
health benefits in the future.

AGREED:

That the report be received and noted and that the comments made by
Members be considered by the Assistant City Mayor Public Health and
the City Mayor when taking future budget decisions.

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF LEICESTER NHS TRUST - QUALITY
ACCOUNTS

The University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust’s submitted a draft Quality
Accounts for 2015/16. Sharon Hotson, Director of Clinical Quality and Julie
Smith, Chief Nurse attended the meeting to present the draft Quality Accounts
and invited the Commission to review the Quality Accounts and provide
feedback by Tuesday 10th May which would be included in the final draft of the
Quality Accounts to be presented to the Trust Board in June.

The Quality Accounts were produced annually to a prescribed format and they
were subject to a statutory requirement to be shared with a number of
stakeholders including the Commission.

The successes for 2015/16 included:-

a) Achieving the three Quality Commitment priorities from the 2014/15
Quality Accounts:-
e Reducing preventable mortality and having a Hospital Level Mortality
Indicator < 100.
e Reducing the risk of error and adverse incidents by 5%.
e Improve patients’ and their carers’ experience of care achieving a
Friends and Family Score of 97%.

b) Having only 1 case of MRSA in the last 14 months.

Particular challenges during the year remained the emergency pathway and in



particular meeting the 4 hour emergency care access standard. Although
internal and external reporting was showing an improving picture in relation to
compliance with SEPSIS 6 Care Bundle there was still more challenges to
achieve all three performance indicators for SEPSIS.

Following questions from Members, it was noted that:-

a) The nationally defined pathway for the early identification of SEPSIS had
been implemented within the clinical teams. Additional training had
been put in place for identifying SEPSIS and meeting the national
standards. The process involved identifying patients with SEPSIS and
carrying out 6 interventions within 60 minutes of arrival at hospital. Each
case was reviewed the following day to assess whether the process had
been followed and whether the patient had suffered if the 60 minute
target was exceeded. The Trust was working closely with EMAS to
determine if they could be involved in the process and help to improve
performance.

b) The hospital was in the middle of the table of NHS Trusts for the
performance in relation to the 4 hour emergency care access standard.
UHL performance was 87.8% against the national target of 95%. The
number of patients attending the emergency department was still
increasing and approximately 750-850 patients were attending daily.
The opening of the new emergency floor would have a significant impact
upon performance but other factors such as bed capacity, discharges
and patient flows through the hospital could still be limiting factors.
There were ongoing discussions with GPs to reduce the number of
patents attending emergency department where their condition could be
safely treated through other healthcare services. Patients were ‘triaged’
on arrival at the emergency department to ensure that those patients
requiring urgent treatment were seen first. Patients waiting for treatment
were monitored regularly and their priority would change should their
condition deteriorate.

C) The CRAB system was an alternative system to one that was already in
use and following a pilot trial it had been decided not to proceed with
implementing CRAB and to retain the existing system.

d) The Acute Kidney Injury (AKI) performance target had not been met as
the national advice had changed during the year. The 90% threshold
was not achieved and the AKI would continue within the Commissioning
and Innovation payment framework (CQUIN) for 2016/17.

Members made the following observations on the draft Quality Accounts:-

a) The rigid format of the Quality Accounts template can be unhelpful at
times as it statements can appear more alarming that they are in reality
to non-medical persons. Parts of the Accounts could be less dense with
less narrative.



87.

b) More could be made of what the Trust did with feedback received
through complaints to improve services.

C) There should be a more detailed explanation of CRAB to add clarity as
to why it was not being continued.

AGREED:
That the Chair submit the Commission’s comments to the Trust together

with any additional comments from Members submitted to the Chair
after the meeting.

ACTION:

That Members submit any further comments to the Chair prior to the Chair
responding formally with the Commission’s comments on the Quality
Accounts.

EAST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS TRUST - QUALITY
ACCOUNTS

EMAS submitted their draft Quality Account 2015/16 and the Commission’s
comments were requested. Paul Benton, Deputy Director of Quality and
Gulnaz Katchi, Community Engagement Officer, EMAS attended the meeting
to outline the performance in 2015/16 and to identify the strategic priorities for
2016/17.

Members received a presentation that had been circulated with the agenda.
During the presentation it was noted that significant progress had been made
on the priorities for 2015/16 which were identified in last year’s Quality
Accounts. Five priorities had been identified for 2016/17 involving:-

e Cardiac arrest — return of spontaneous circulation (ROSC) and survival
outcomes.

e SEPSIS

e Identify common themes all maternity related incidents and reduce
patient related incidents.

o Explore alternative pathways and to develop the pathways in the Trust
and in each commissioning area.

e To work collaboratively with local commissioners and relevant
stakeholders to implement the agreed priorities within the mental health
action group.

It was noted that SEPSIS presented a challenge as its symptoms mimic those
of other health issues.

In response to a question from the Chair on the recent suggestion in the press

10



that EMAS may merge with WMAS, the Deputy Director of Quality stated that it
was premature to suggest such a merger and the Trust Development Agency
currently had no desire for this to happen. All ambulance trusts were facing
financial difficulties and any amalgamation could worsen this as it would be 5-7
years before any financial benefits were likely to be achieved. It was better for
trusts to remain as they were and to be adequately funded for the demands
being placed upon them. If the two trusts merged it would create a trust
responsible for providing a service over 7,000 sg miles which was felt to be too
large an area.

The trust received approximately 2,000 calls from people dialling 999 and from
other healthcare professional requesting urgent transport requests. There had
been 53 ‘serious’ patient safety incidents in the year which required
investigation which allowed the trust to analyse what happened and to put in
place actions to reduce the occurrence in the future. Some of these incidents
result from ‘human error’ and an example of such an instance was described in
the Quality Accounts.

In response to a Member’s question the Deputy Director of Quality stated that
the trusts were fined for not achieving performance targets and the trust had
been penalised for delays in patient hand-over times at hospitals. The trust
could in turn fine acute hospitals for these delays but preferred instead to work
closely with the acute hospitals to improve the situation.

The Chair commented that Members recognised that some of the issues faced
by the Trust were not within their control but were dependent on the
performance of acute hospital trusts, demands placed upon the by the public,
the support and work of GPs etc in the primary care sector, and discharge
process from hospitals.

Members welcomed the priorities identified for 2016/17 and recognised that the
Trust could not prevent some of the issues happening in the first place, such as
SEPSIS. They also felt that the Quality Accounts were more lay friendly to
people with no medical knowledge. Members also welcomed the views
expressed that a merger with WMAS was not considered to be appropriate at
the present time.

AGREED:
That the Chair submit the Commission’s comments to the Trust together
with any additional comments from Members submitted to the Chair
after the meeting.

ACTION:

That Members submit any further comments to the Chair prior to the Chair
responding formally with the Commission’s comments on the Quality
Accounts.

11



88.

COMMISSIONING OF A DIABETES STRUCTURED PATIENT EDUCATION
PROGRAMME

The Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group submitted a report on the
procurement of a Diabetes Structured Patient Education programme for
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. Hannah Hutchinson, Senior Strategy
and Implementation Manager, LCCCG attended the meeting and outlined the
proposal to the Commission.

It was noted that the existing education programme known as DESMOND
(Diabetes Education and Self-Management for Ongoing and Newly Diagnosed)
had been provided by the University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust (UHL)
and the Leicester Diabetes Centre. The contract was due to expire of 1 April
2016.

The Competition and Procurement Committee had previously agreed in June
2015, after a 12 week patient engagement process, to offer the new service to
the market through the open procurement process. A GP, nurse, patient
representatives and commissioning officers from all three CCGs were involved
in preparing the specification for the new tender. Following the procurement
process, Spirit Healthcare was identified as the preferred provider. Spirit
Healthcare will be meeting with Leicester City CCG'’s clinical lead and GP
diabetes mentors on a quarterly basis to discuss any operational changes that
may be needed to the course or to discuss issues raised by patients. There
will also be monthly Contract Performance Review meetings for the first three
months which will then become quarterly.

The new course, EMPOWER, provided better benefits to patients and was
more flexible its operation. Some of the benefits were:-

e Offering courses with Gujarati speaking personnel. There were also
options for interpreters to be available for other languages if
necessary.

e The courses would be tailored to address different dietary
preferences in different communities and to take account of different
faiths and religions, particularly when fasting.

e Booklets had been translated into the top 10 languages prevalent in
the City and information had been put on the GPs information
services so details could be printed off for patients.

e The information was also available in braille.

e The course was flexible to be delivered at a time that suited the
patient and could be split over two days if required.

e The courses could be provided at a number of community based
venues.

e There was a 24/7 telephone number and helpline for patients.

e The course would also be available to patients with a HbAlc of over
8 where the GP felt the patient would benefit from participating on
the course.

12



89.

e Spirit Healthcare would also follow up patients at 6 and 12 months
following completion of the initial programme.
e The course was available to the patient and a carer of their choice.

Spirit Healthcare had received 86 referrals to date and had three courses
planned for late April and May.

Members made the following comments:-

a) Diabetes patients were susceptible to extensive bruising from
comparatively minor injuries and it was felt this should be included in the
education programme.

b) It was equally important for family members and work place colleagues
to have an understanding of the diabetes in order that they could
recognise symptoms of a hypoglycaemic reaction and understand what
steps to take.

The Senior Strategy and Implementation Manager stated that she would
feedback on Members’ comments to see if they could be included in the
education programme.

The Director of Corporate Affairs also stated that Spirit Healthcare had
considerable experience in delivering these courses had scored highly during
the procurement process on delivery and patient confidence.

AGREED:
1) That the report be received and that Members comments
be fed back to the CCG.
2) That a further report be submitted to the Commission on
the performance of the contract in the future.
ACTION:

That the Scrutiny Policy Officer add the item to the future Work Programme.

NHS 111 - UPDATE REPORT

The Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group submitted a report on the
outcome of the investigation into Derbyshire Health United (DHU) the provider
of the NHS 111 service in Leicestershire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and
Northamptonshire. The Commission had previously considered this item at its
meeting on 29 October 2015 (Minute No. 41 refers).

The Director of Corporate Affairs, Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group
stated that the allegations made by a former employee of Derbyshire Health

13



90.

United (DHU) had been taken seriously and had been thoroughly investigated
by North Derbyshire CCG and overseen by NHS England. The investigation
had found that there were no serious causes for concern in relation to patient
safety but had made a number of recommendation to improve procedural,
methodology and operational matters. The review had been wide ranging and
had identified areas where DHU had performed well and where performance
could be more robust, as well as identifying areas where the CCG could
improve the management of the contract with DHU. An action plan had been
produced and shared with all stakeholders. This would be implemented during
the next three months.

Members welcomed the report and its findings and the measures being taken
to strengthen the service.

AGREED:
That the report be received and the proposed improvements to
strengthen the service and the contract management be
welcomed.

ARRIVA PATIENT TRANSFERS

The Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group submitted an update report
on the Non-Emergency Patient Transport Service currently provided by Arriva
Transport Services. The Director of Corporate Affairs stated that the CCG had
now decided not to exercise the option to extend the contract with Arriva in
June 2017. Having reviewed the contract and its operation as reported
previously to the Commission, the CCG had decided to start the re-
procurement process and expected the contract to be in place by July 2017.

The contract was now being redesigned to ensure that it meets the needs of
the local health economy. A Task and Finish Group had been established to
produce a new specification for the contract and the process would involve
incorporating the views of regular users of the service.

Following questions from Members it was noted that:-

a) West Leicestershire CCG were the lead CCG for the contract and
already had a number of patient networks in place and they were also
looking at how they could involve as many people as possible in shaping
the revised specification of the contract.

b) It was envisaged that the revised specification for the contract would be
available for September 2016.

C) There had been some issues with the current contract that were outside
of Arriva’s control and these would be considered as part of the new
contract specification. Also, discussions were still ongoing with Arriva to
improve other aspects of the current contract and Arriva were actively
engaging in his process.

14



91.

92.

d) It was accepted that many providers of the service nationally had found
meeting the performance targets challenging.

e) It was not known how many potential providers may submit tenders for
the new contract. Arriva would be eligible to bid for the new contract
when it was re-procured.

AGREED:
That the update on the re-procurement process and patient
involvement be welcomed and that a further report be submitted
when the revised contract specification has been agreed.
ACTION:

That the Scrutiny Policy Officer add the item to the future Work Programme.

PRIMARY CARE WORKFORCE SCRUTINY REVIEW

The Chair provided an update on the review. The Chair had met with Dr Peter
Miller, Chief Executive of Leicester Partnership NHS Trust and Chair the Local
Education Training Council and his comments had now been incorporated into
the report. It was noted that Dr Miller had only been Chair of the Local
Education Training Council and had recognised that the focus had traditionally
been on acute care and workplace training than the primary care sector. With
the development of Better Care Together the focus had moved to primary care.
The Chair hoped that planning for the primary care workforce would have more
strategic oversight through the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board and
through the involvement of Adult Social Care.

AGREED:
That the progress of the review report be noted and the final
report be submitted to the Executive and NHS partners as well as
NHS England.
ACTION:

That the Scrutiny Policy Officer arrange for the final report to be submitted to
the Executive and the NHS partners and NHS England.

WORK PROGRAMME

The Scrutiny Support Officer submitted a document that outlined the Health
and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission’s Work Programme for 2015/16.

15



93.

94.

AGREED:
That the Work Programme be noted and that Non-Emergency
Patient Transport Service and the CQC Report on the University
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust be added to the Work
Programme.

ACTION:

That the Scrutiny Policy Officer add the items to the future Work Programme.

UPDATE ON PROGRESS WITH MATTERS CONSIDERED AT A PREVIOUS
MEETING

The Commission received an update on the following items that had been
considered at a previous meeting:-

a) Substance Misuse Services

It was noted that the contract for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland had
been awarded to Turning Point.

b) LPT Scrutiny Review

The review had been completed and the draft report would be forwarded to
Members. Members were asked to submit any comments on the draft report to
Chair, so that the report could be finalised.

C) Health Messaging Scrutiny Review

The Chair stated that the review’s progress had been delayed to ensure the
Primary Care Workforce Review had been completed. She hoped to continue
with the review in the next municipal year.

CLOSE OF MEETING

The Chair thanked Members for their work on behalf of the Commission during
the year.

The meeting closed at 8.35 pm.

16



LT

T

=

P

A Picture of Health in Leicester City
Division of Public Health, May 2016

A

g XIpuadOgiici: = =

O
Col
o0

City Council



How is your health in general? Would you say it is...?

m Very good = Good = Fair = Bad = Verybad = Don't know

.-a

8T

Base: All valid responses (2321) : Fieldwork dates : 26t January — 7t June 2015

Age
16-19
20-24
25-34
35-64
65+
Gender
Male
Female
Ethnicity
White
Asian/Asian British
Black/Black British
BME
Employment status
Working
Unemployed/seeking work
Homemaker

Long term sick/disabled

% Good

70% (p O

L eicésterpsos MOR
City Council



Young people

38% of Leicester’s population are aged under 25. Here's how we compare...

Better than England Improving but worse than
England

GCSE
achievement

Obesity levels
In primary
school children




Life expe@ZCV in years

90.0

80.0

70.0

60.0

50.0

40.0

30.0

20.0

10.0

0.0

Life expectancy and Healthy life expectancy at birth,

77.3

Men

Leicester

In good health

2012-2014

Women

Leicester

M Not in good health

16.1

Men

England

Life expectancy

Women

England

Life expectancy has shown a gradual
improvement.

On average men in Leicester can expect to live
77.3 years and women 81.8 years.

On average, men in Leicester live 2.2 years less
and women 1.4 years less than in England

Men and women can expect around 58 years to
be spent in ‘good health’, fewer years compared
with England.

Women in Leicester can expect to have a similar
life expectancy in ‘good health’ as men, but a
longer life expectancy ‘not in good health’




(Castle Hill

\Mowmacrel&

Beaumont|Leys|

Public Health Division
Leicester City Council
Created: April 2016

(c) Crown copyright. All rights reserved Leicester City Council. 100019264. 2016

Healthy life expectancy across Leicester

Healthy life expectancy at birth for Leicester females
by mid-layer super output area (MSOA)
2009-13

Healthy life expectancy for females
by Middle Super Output Area, 2009-2013
65 to70.1 (3)
61 to65 (9)
iss toe1 (8)
s tos8 (1)
G705 (6)

i :Significantly better than the Leicester rate

7777/ Significantly worse than the Leicester rate
Female healthy life expectancy in Leicester: 59.2
Female healthy life expectancy in England: 64.8

Across Leicester, women live between 51 and 70 years in good

health

Worst in St Matthews/St Peters, Saffron and Spinney Hills

Across Leicester, men live between 52 and 68 years in good

health
Worst in Braunstone, City Centre, New Parks
Best in Western Park, Evington, South Knighton

Healthy life expectancy at birth for Leicester males
by mid-layer super output area (MSOA)
2009-13

Castle Hill

Western :
Ciipaniid

Healthy life expectancy 2009 - 13
For Leicester males by MSOA

64 t068.8 (3)

61 to64 (8)

58 to61 (11)
Blss tos58 (8)
Bls22t055 (7)

Best in Western Park, Clarendon Park, South Knighton

Significantly better than the Leicester rate (12)

77/ Significantly worse than the Leicester rate (14)
Male healthy life expectancy in Leicester: 59.1
Male healthy life expectancy in England: 63.5

Public Health Division
Leicester City Council
Created: April 2016

(c) Crown copyright. Al rights reserved Leicester City Council. 100019264. 2016




What people die of...

The top 3 causes of all deaths in Leicester are cardiovascular diseases, cancers and respiratory
diseases.

These account for two out of every three deaths in Leicester.

For deaths in under 75 years olds (premature deaths), the top 3 causes are:
* cancers 35%

» cardiovascular diseases 25%
» respiratory diseases 10%




Cardiovascular diseases (CVD)

CVD: diseases of the heart and blood vessels: includes
coronary heart disease, stroke and hypertension.

ec

Risk factors: overweight and obesity, unhealthy diet, physical
inactivity, tobacco use, high alcohol consumption, stress.

Emergency hospital admission rates are higher in men, older
ages and Asian ethnic groups

Death rates have improved over the last 10 years but.. they
are higher for men and women in Leicester than in England.




vc

=ue
==e
=ue
==e
=i
=ue
=i
=ue
=ne
=ie
-=

=i
=ue
==

=ie
==e
=i
=ue

Tobacco

=ue
=me
=ue
==e
=&
=ue
==
=ue
=me
=i

Diet

Obesity

=ue
=me
=ue
==e
=&

Aleohol

=ue
==e
=ue
==e

UV light
[n] = 12 new cases in Leicester

=ue
=me
=ue

Physical inactivity

=ue

==e

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

% of new cancer cases

20

 Death rates from Cancer in Leicester are similar to national rates.

* In 2014, over 600 deaths from cancer in Leicester.

« Lifestyle factors are a major contributor to cancer.




Lifestyle factors: Smoking and Alcohol

% of Leicester's adults who are current smokers:

Kish 23%

o Alcohol misuse damages health: heart disease, stroke,
N - high blood pressure, liver cirrhosis, depression and
. o anxiety, cancer of the mouth/throat, breast cancer,

[ . pancreatitis.
& « 45% of Leicester adults have never drunk alcohol
White 20% * 10% drink over the recommended maximum limits
Asian 12%
Other BME 17%
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Links to Deprivation

Smoking is the largest cause of premature
deathl, 7 J - P - « Smoking is higher in more deprived areas.

Average number of smoking related deaths in D B oselv [ink
the city is 372 per year (Lung cancer: 135 * Alcohol consumption is not as closely linked to

COPD: 119) deprivation.
74% of smokers have tried to quit



Lifestyle factors: Obesity and Physical Activity

Obesity is linked with type 2 diabetes,
cardiovascular disease and cancer.

{\?j &

|

V

L

—

Levels of overweight/obesity are higher in:
« Men

» Older ages

* People with bad health

* 64% of men and 54% of women
complete the recommended 150
minutes of physical activity per week.

Weight categoriesin Leicester adults:
=]

Underweight "
High levels of inactivity (less than 150 ety g | |
minutes per week) is more common Overweight

In older age groups, Asian and Black Obese -]
ethnic groups Vergobass g

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%




Mental health and wellbeing

« 14% of Leicester’s 16+ population report a poor mental
health and wellbeing score.

« The unemployed, long term sick/disabled and social
renters are all more likely to report poor mental health.

* There is a link between those who report poor mental
health and wellbeing and feeling socially isolated.

16-19
20-24
25-34
35-64
65+
Gender
Male
Female
Ethnicity
White
BME
Employment status
Working
Unemployed/seeking work
At home - not seeking work
Long term sick/disabled
Tenure
Owner-occupier
Private renter
Social renter




Conclusions

A young population

High deprivation

Significant challenges for younger people
Reducing premature mortality

Improving mental health

Importance of prevention




v
‘s about our l/[&, .014!’ A;M*A) “ Bet'ter care together
our COXE, 0“;7 Fom ’[)/ U A' Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland health and social care
onr Community’

Better care together

Programme Overview
Leicester City HOSC
May 2016

D Xlpuaddy

O
Co2 :
# Rutland 005 [ toceseree VAT

tttttt o
Gy Gt



va
Better care together
" Leetec Lecestershwe & Ruthand hea'th and social ¢

BCT Partners and Governance

 BCT is a major change programme involving all of the major NHS and social
care organisations across Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland

* |t brings together the three healthcare providers for the region, the three
CCG’s and the three local authorities who are known as the “Partners”

* The Partners govern the programme via a Partnership Board which has a lay
chair

* The operational delivery of the programme is run via leaders from each of
the Partner organisations and working groups are made up of team members
from a mixture of the Partner organisations which drives integration. These
groups are known as Work-streams

* Clinical leaders from all Partners come together as a Clinical Leadership
Group

* A small Programme Management Office supports the process of change

—O—

Sa
% Rulland Coo M Lelcestershire m
County Courct County Councll

o€



Ya
®_ Better care together

‘ ' Lecetec Lecestershire & Rutland heo'th and social care

BCT Strategic Objectives

The Better care together (BCT) programme was launched in January 2014 with the aim over five years to;

. Deliver high quality, citizen-centred, integrated care pathways, delivered in the appropriate place and at the appropriate time by
the appropriate person, supported by staff/citizens, resulting in a reduction in the time spent avoidably in hospital;

. To reduce inequalities in care (both physical and mental) across and within communities in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
(VD (LLR) Local Health and Social Care Economy;
H

. To increase the number of those citizens with mental, physical health and social care needs reporting a positive experience of care
across all health and social care settings;

. To optimise both the opportunities for integration and the use of physical assets across the health and social care economy,
ensuring care is provided in appropriate cost effective settings, reducing duplication and eliminating waste in the system;

. All health and social care organisations in LLR to achieve financial sustainability, by adapting the resource profile where
appropriate;

. To improve the utilisation of workforce and the development of new capacity and capabilities where appropriate, in the people
and the technology used.

O
COO eicestersiwre
- R Pl VHS

Loicester
Gty Cowned



Presentation title to appear here

The combined
outputs from the
BCT work-streams
drive a set of
(,@'nproved outcomes

for patients and the
public

BCT Outcomes

We will ensure the Ll hel.p pe.ople
stay well in mind

and body

very best start in life

We will be there We will know

when it matters and peoples History and
especially in a crisis plan for their needs

We will provide

better support when
life comes to an end

v
AQ‘ Better care together
W‘V

Lescentec Lecestershire & Rutiand health and social care

We will provide
faster access shorter
waits and more
services

We will care for the
most vulnerable and
el

BCT
Outcomes

Only by combining the outputs of the work-streams can the
outcomes be achieved — the partnership approach.

—O—

ﬂ Rutland €0

County Courcil

County Cound m
CQ County Councll
Lelcoster

Gty Coned



Presentation title to appear here

£\

0

Self care and
prevention

v
‘O‘ Better care together

"v Leicestec Lekcesterstire & Butiand hewth and social care

1 2 3 4

Primary Enhanced Urgent care and Emergency and

&x

Prevent: Primary
prevention, early

o

detection,
treatment

Patient

care routine care crisis response acute care
L [ 1 1 1 >
Greater risk and complexity
‘
Practice
District

(Multispecialty
Community

Provider) Acute

Avoid: Enhance crisis response or ambulatory pathways to
prevent avoidable admission to hospital

Reduce: When hospital admission is required,
length of stay is as short as possible and long
term health and wellbeing is optimised

NHS

fon ]



v
A ‘ Better care together

"v Lecestec Leicestershine & Rutiand hewth and social care

Overa” impaCt on -Improvements tp availability of
services available by [ommony senvices

eImprovements to availability of primary

Presentation title to appear here

district or locality care services Public consultation
will be structured
. eMental Health
Improvements in  «Leaming disabilities to cover:
.- . eLong term conditions q 00
specific services that ., cq e * Services requiring
do not need OChiIdren'.? services COnSUItation
. *Adult social care
consultation End of life services e (Other service
improvements

Ch t . e Overall changes to UHL and the .
anges 10 Services future of the General hospital site | ® What it means by

requiring public * Maternity services district or locality

: e Overall changes to community
consultation hospital services

¥ Rudland %3 ¥ P \H'S



va
Better care together
" Leetec Lecestershwe & Rutiand hea'th and social care

Changes of interest to City patients

e Additional “Hospital at home” beds, more patients rehabilitate in own
home

e Reconfiguration of Leicester General Hospital (LGH) site, acute services
moved to Leicester Royal Infirmary (LRI) and Glenfield hospital

we Maternity services on LGH site moved to LRI and potentially a Midwife led
unit created at LGH

* Diabetes centre of excellence, Evington centre and stroke rehabilitation
remain at LGH site

* New women’s hospital at LRI

* New look for children’s hospital at LRI

* New planned care hub at Glenfield site

e City CCG investigating potential for primary care hubs

—O—

@ (I«{ Alx“ I(I"”]d CO\)O M m Courx II m



Appendix D

Leicestershire Partnership NHS|

NHS Trust

Health and Wellbeing Board: Scrutiny

Title Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
Overview & Position Statement - LLR.

Presenting Professor Adrian CHilds, Chief Executive Officer - Leicestershire

Officer Partnership NHS Trust

Author(s) Helen Thompson, Executive Director - FYPC

Adam McKeown, Service Group Manager - FYPC

36



CAMHS Service Overview

The Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), within Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust
(LPT)’s Families Young People and Children’s directorate (FYPC), provides specialist mental health services
for all children and young people up to the age of 18 years who are experiencing moderate to severe mental ill
health, providing they reside and are registered with a GP in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.

Operating Budget 2016/17:

WTE budget Payroll Annual | Non-Payroll Total Expenditure

Budget Annual Budget | Budget
CAMHS City OP Team 12.07 669,705 12,825 682,530
CAMHSYoung Peoples Team |11.31 600,267 18,263 618,530
CAMHS Primary Mental Health | 12.09 562,128 22,580 584,708
Team
CAMHS Learning Disabilities | 8.81 576,367 15,367 591,734
CAMHS LD Outreach 8.40 297,832 19,132 316,964
CAMHS In-patient Service 28.32 1,175,864 38,056 1,213,920
CAMHS Eating Disorders 7.86 572,348 572,348
Paediatric Psychology 7.50 421,542 4,155 425,697
Total Pay Expenditure 96.36 4,876,053 130,378 5,006,431

CAMHS Outpatient Service:

The primary function of the service is to assess and treat children and young people aged 0-18 with severe,
significant or enduring mental health or developmental disorders through the provision of evidence based
treatment and interventions. The Specialist CAMHS Outpatient Teams provide children and families with a
range of services to facilitate the assessment and treatment of significant mental health problems and
disorders, including:

* Psychotic disorders

» Severe/moderate depression

* Eating disorders

» Severe/moderate Obsessive disorders

» Severe/moderate Anxiety disorders

» Complex ADHD (as part of the agreed ADHD multi agency care pathway)
» Complex autism (as part of the ASD pathway)

» Traumatised or abused children with severe impact on mental health

There are two generic Outpatient Teams: Leicester City: and Leicestershire and Rutland County. The City
team is based at Westcotes House. The County Team is based at the Valentine Centre with outlying bases.

CAMHS Young Persons Team:
Within the service, the multi-disciplinary Young People’s Team work with groups of children and young
people deemed to be at high risk of emotional development and mental health problems. These groups

include looked after children, adopted children, young offenders and homeless young people. The Young

2

37



People’s Team focuses on minimizing disruption in the continuity of care, especially when these children and
young people move placements. The team also provides advice; training and liaison to other professionals
working with looked after children.

CAMHS Primary Mental Health Teams:

From 1% June our new service offer ensures that; each locality across City and County will have a named
primary mental health worker based in the locality to work closely with our FYPC Family Service Managers to
facilitate multi-agency working in neighbourhoods. The refocus of the team will ensure that early help is made
available where needed and that the appropriate support networks are in place when cases are de-escalated.
Their roles will evolve according to the needs within the locality. They will receive referrals via the access
model.

Primary Mental Health Teams will compile mental health related content for our Health for Kids
(www.healthforkids.co.uk) and Health for Teens (www.healthforteens.co.uk) websites. This will be
central to a campaign around de-stigmatisation of mental health issues.

CAMHS Professional Advisory Service:

The Professional Advisory Service (PAS) is available for any professional working with a child or young person
who needs advice about a specific case, or further information about referral criteria. This telephone service is
the “first port of call’, and is widely used by GPs, but there is currently little take-up/awareness of the service by
other health professionals. It operates 9-3pm 5 days a week.

CAMHS Eating Disorders Service:

The Eating Disorders Team has been operational across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland since 2007
when it was staffed at 2.5 whole time equivalent (WTE). The service worked with commissioners to secure
additional funding, and £440,000 from 2016/17 which has meant the service — based at Mawson House in
Braunstone, Leicester — has been able to expand to take on additional clinical staff. Following recruitment, the
service is now at 11 WTE with a view to recruit 17 WTE as the expansion of the service is commissioned (an
expectation of NHS England by 2020).

Currently, following referral, patients will receive a telephone triage contact within five days. Urgent cases are
then seen within a week, while routine screening assessments are done within a month. Currently 100 cases
per year are referred to the service.

CAMHS LD Out-patient and Outreach Service:

The CAMHS Learning Disabilities Service will work with young people and their families / carers in a variety
of settings including the outpatient clinics, home, school and community placements or support systems.
As part of mental health assessment, diagnostic work and treatment, the team will undertake behavioural
assessments and management of challenging behaviour in close collaboration with our colleagues in
health, social services, education and the voluntary sector. If outpatient work is not sufficient to bring about
change in challenging behaviour, the team will provide additional work into the family home using the
Learning Disability Outreach Service.

The treatment approaches used within out-patients and outreach will include

Psychiatric medical (pharmacological)

Family therapy

Verbal and non-verbal psychological therapies
Modified CBT

Applied Behavioural Analysis

38


http://www.healthforkids.co.uk/
http://www.healthforteens.co.uk/

¢ Behavioural, sleep and communication assessment and intervention strategies
e Psycho educational
e Group and individual therapies

CAMHS LD Behavioural Inclusion Service:

The Behavioural Inclusion Service works collaboratively with voluntary groups / services / short break
providers who require specific training and support regarding an understanding of challenging behaviours,
learning disability, Autistic Spectrum Disorder, Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder, Attachment
Disorders and mental health problems to enable safe delivery of short break provision.

The Behavioural Inclusion Service will deliver an agreed package of training to staff from the identified
short break services, groups, respite carers, etc. The aim of the training is to equip staff/carers with
the skills and knowledge required to understand and manage challenging behaviours and how a
child’s specific diverse needs may impact upon these. The behavioural inclusion service also offer the
training to parent and sibling groups in a modified format to meet their needs and enable success in
managing their child’s challenging behaviours within the family home.

The CAMHS LD teams operates Monday to Friday 9am to 5pm, with some flexibility according to
patient needs, in a variety of settings, including Rothesay, special schools, Westcotes, Orchard
resource centre, Hawthorn Centre, Community hospitals, home visits.

CAMHS Inpatients Service— Ward 3:

Ward 3 is a Tier 4 10 bedded CAMHS unit based at the Coalville Community Hospital site. The Inpatient
service provides assessment, planning and treatment to adolescents aged from 11 — 18 years presenting
with acute and complex, or suspected, mental iliness. The service is commissioned by NHS England on a
regional basis.

Current Performance Context

Number of patients within CAMHS Portfolio: 3473
Number of referrals to CAMHS within 2015/16: 5351 (4137 accepted referrals)

Increase in referrals annually (for last 4 years): 10% annual average increase in demand

CAMHS Community Performance - referral to first contact target: 13 week (routine)

39



Over 13 week: 43 children /young people across LLR (all with booked appointments to end of June)
0-26 week waiting list: 725 children/young people on the waiting list in total

Projected 13 week position: 0 waiters over 13 weeks by 31°" June 2016 (communicated and agreed by
commissioners and supported by locum support ahead of the launch of the access transformation,
discussed in the next section).

***Comparative context - Over 13 week position at November 2015: 250+ over 13 weeks

CAMHS Community Performance - referral to first contact target: 4 weeks (urgent)
Over 4 weeks - 0

100% compliance with target

CAMHS Inpatient Performance — Average Length of stay
49 days (2015/16)
CAMHS Inpatient Performance — Bed occupancy

Bed occupancy 92% (2015/16)

Transformational Change Initiatives

With the publication of the government’s Future in Mind document in 2015, there is a national spotlight on
CAMHS, with a focus very much on ensuring early intervention, trying to build resilience in young people and
working towards de-stigmatisation across the sector. This means a move away from the previous tiered
model of service delivery, which has created barriers that make it harder for children and families to access
services.

Introducing awhole new way to access our CAMHS services...

Following a successful pilot, we are now implementing a radically different and innovative model of service
delivery, including improved access and new care pathways. From 1 June, following a GP referral, there will be
a single point of access (SPA). This means that families or carers will receive a telephone contact from a
clinician within three weeks of the original referral. Following the call they will either:

e be redirected to other support via our care navigators (whose role is to facilitate and co-ordinate access
for families to appropriate services across the sector)

e Dbe allocated early help provision

e be given a face-to-face appointment or a telephone triage with a member of the primary mental health
team

e be referred straight to our specialist teams (currently ‘Tier 3’).

Within a further eight weeks, they will be advised of their further treatment options and be placed within one of
five care pathways. This new service delivery model will enable a more collaborative and targeted approach to
working with social care, universal health and voluntary sector provision, from the point of access. Dedicated
care navigation systems in both the City and the County will ensure that children and young people with mental
ill health are able to receive timely and appropriate care from the right agencies. Historically, CAMHS has not

5

40



met the 13 week access target. However, it is anticipated that the new model of service delivery will mean it is
met routinely and consistently

Developing evidenced based and consistent Pathways of care....

The CAMHS pathways will utilise a stepped care model of service delivery for specific clinical presentations
and should be seen as a clinical tool. The development of this process will necessarily include the clinical
presentations that are not considered ‘common’ or may require specialist provision from within a clear
evidence and practice base.

The provision of a Care Pathway identifies the evidence based and suggested clinical route of expected
provision. However, Future in Mind (2015) identifies that there is a requirement for local commissioning
agencies to declare their current investment, as well as the needs of the local population with regards the
full range of provision for children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing.

CARE PATHWAYS

111111

PSYCHOSIS MOOD ANXIETY NEURO UNDER 5’S CRISIS

DISORDERS

CONCURRENT EMOTIONAL AND BEHAVIOURAL DIFFICULTIES INCLUDING SELF HARM

| >

SIGNIFICANT LIFE EVENTS IMPACTING ON MENTAL HEALTH INCLUDING TRAUMA

Specialist CAMHS will operate between the moderate to severe range of presentation (please see table
above). The treatment package will be based upon a comprehensive assessment and formulation of the
young person’s difficulties within their own unique context. These Pathways are agreed in principle and will
be rolled out into operational delivery from September 2016.

CAMHS Leading the way in service-user co-design....

CAMHS services have commissioned the launch of a Young Advisers Network (‘Evolving Minds’) made up of
local young people aged 13 — 21 who have either had direct experience of CAMHS themselves, or who have

6

41



helped a sibling or friend struggling with mental health problems. The Network has consulted on the
development of a crisis service business case, and continue to work with us to help make our provision more
‘young person friendly.” ‘Evolving Minds’, want to represent the voices of young people in the region, helping
to tackle stigma around children and young people’s mental health.

During 2016/17 Evolving Minds will be developing a training package for all CAMHS Practitioners
around communicating effectively with young people as well as leading the development of the
digital CAMHS offer in conjunction with Clinical and management leads.

CAMHS working with commissioners and partners to develop a more responsive emotional, mental
health system in LLR.....

We are a key partner in the Emotional Mental Health and Wellbeing sub-group of Better Care Together (LLR)
currently working on the following service offers;

e Designing a Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment Service for Children and young
people

e Joining up health, voluntary sector and Early Help offers across City, County and
Rutland to intervene early for children and young people with emotional and mental
health problems.

o Design atraining initiatives around emotional mental health for the LLR health and care
system staff in relation to

o Digital solutions for self-care, information, advice and sign posting for those children,
young people and their families

Service Risks, Issues & Mitigations

Risk Mitigation Owner RAG Status
There is a risk that the
concerns raised from e Consistent risk Service Group
the CQC have not been assessment Manager &
fully addressed:; documentation & | Clinical
SOP rolled out in Professional
e Risk Assessment CAMHS from Leads (CAMHS)
Process January 2016
e Environmental e Environmental
Risk Risk assessments
Assessments and extra security
e Capacity to features rolled out
Consent (at Westcotes
e Supervision House). Ligature
recording audits completed
and reviewed
e Consent proforma
developed, trailed
and rolled out from
January 2016
e EPRrrolled out to
all teams in
CAMHS

42



e Clinical Leads
formulating
assurance process
from June 2016 to
ensure changes
have been
embedded into
clinical practice.

e Supervision
performance
management
initiated with
significantly
improved results
December — March
2016

There is a risk that the
Access model  will
produce a hidden
waiting list whilst the
Pathways are in the
final stage of
development.

Sustained effort, through
PTLs, to move towards
pathway work and the
performance
management of
throughput via new
operational management
posts.

Service Group
Manager & Team
Leads (CAMHS)

There is a risk that the
teams do not fully
embrace new ways of
working and
performance is
compromised.

Clinical and operational
leads to provide
demonstrable leadership
- holding teams to
account for changes in
practice via regular
reviews and participation
in new QDR process.

Service Group
Manager &
Clinical
Professional
Leads (CAMHS)

43




44



1%

Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission

Work Programme 2016 — 2017

Meeting Date

Topic

Actions arising

Progress

1)

Health profile: Overview of the city

th
25 May 2) Better Care Together: overview presentation
2016 3) Anchor Recovery Hub update
4) CAMHS
5) Work Programme
30t June
2016
7th
September
2016

Page | 1

J Xipuaddy



oY

Forward Plan Items

Topic

Detail

Proposed Date

Public consultation to scrutiny...

Better Care Together Big transformation of services from secondary to primary | June/July 20167
care...

Dementia, Dental Care, Diabetes, GPs, Obesity, | Progress to individual strategies/services

Smoking, COPD and substance Misuse

Epilepsy Awareness presentation June/July 2016

Health and Wellbeing of staff Monitoring of sick days and support services

Health Visitors and School Nurses Understanding of the transfer of services to the Council

Maternity Care Services Update

Mental Health Services for Black British Men Review progress to recommendations made by scrutiny

Mental Health and Sexual Health of the LGBT Continue to understand and monitor the issues that

Community impact on LGBT community

Public Health Budget Review the whole of the budget including services not 25t Ma
re-procured (rolled on and if so why) y

EMAS CQC report Review the report and actions taken by EMAS June 2016

Childhood obesity

To be programmed

Anchor Recovery Hub

To be a standing item

Oral Health project

To be programmed

Page | 2




	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	9 HEALTH PROFILE OF LEICESTER
	10 BETTER CARE TOGETHER
	11 CAMHS
	13 WORK PROGRAMME

